
       County of Santa Cruz 
 

        IN-HOME SUPPORTIVE SERVICES PUBLIC AUTHORITY 

                      18 W. Beach Street, Watsonville, CA; P.O. Box 1300, Santa Cruz, CA 95061 

                (831) 454-4036      FAX: (831) 763-8906  

The County of Santa Cruz complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act. This meeting room is accessible for people with disabilities. If 

you wish to discuss reasonable modifications or accommodations, please call 454-4036 prior to the meeting. For the comfort of those with 

allergies and chemical sensitivities, please do not wear perfume or scented products to the meeting. 

Notice of Public Meeting and Agenda 

IHSS Advisory Commission 

Date: Friday, January 27, 2023 
Time:  1:00PM to 3:00PM  
 
Pursuant to AB 361 and Cal. Gov. Code section 54953, due to the ongoing COVID 19 
state of emergency and upon recommendation of the County Health Officer, public 
meetings of the IHSS Advisory Commission will be conducted in remote format. 
Members of the public can attend virtually by teleconference. 
 
PLEASE DIAL-IN TO THE TELECONFERENCE USING THE INFORMATION LISTED 
BELOW: 
 

TELECONFERENCE INFORMATION 
United States: (831) 454-2222 
Phone Conference ID: 380 532 40# 

 
FOR QUESTIONS REGARDING THE REMOTE MEETING PROCESS, PLEASE 
CONTACT THE PUBLIC AUTHORITY AT (831) 454-4036 OR 
JUAN.MAGANA@SANTACRUZCOUNTY.US  

Agenda 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

a. Welcome new Commissioner – Rebecca Jordan  

3. Agenda Review 

4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Meeting Minutes 

i. September 23, 2022 Meeting…………………………………………Page 3. 

ii. December 7, 2022 Special Meeting………………………………….Page 7. 

b. Correspondence 

i. Commission on Disabilities 

1. August 11, 2022 Meeting ………………………………….....Page 9. 

ii. Seniors Commission 

1. June 21, 2022 Meeting………………………………………Page 11.  

c. Commission Vacancies 

Page 1

mailto:JUAN.MAGANA@SANTACRUZCOUNTY.US


 

 

 

i. Two (2) – Consumer Representatives 

5. Oral Communications and Announcements: Anyone wishing to address the commission 
on any item within the jurisdiction of the Commission and not listed on the agenda may 
do so at this time. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes in duration. 

6. Regular Agenda – Action Items 

a. IHSS Advisory Commission Meeting Location (AB 361)………………….Page 13. 

b. 2022 IHSS Advisory Commission Attendance……………………………..Page 15. 

c. 2023 Commission Goals 

7. Regular Agenda – Information Items 

a. Updates/Housekeeping 

i. Reminders from the Chair 

ii. Topics & Speakers 

b. Provider Concerns 

c. IHSS Program Updates 

d. Public Authority Updates 

e. Subcommittee Reports 

i. Legislative/Advocacy (Molesky) 

1. Elderly and Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee 

ii. Website (Taylor/Andersen) 

iii. CICA Conference Calls (Campbell) 

8. Adjournment 

Next Regular Meeting: February 24, 2023, 1:00PM – 3:00PM 

Page 2



       County of Santa Cruz 
 

        IN-HOME SUPPORTIVE SERVICES PUBLIC AUTHORITY 

                      18 W. Beach Street, Watsonville, CA; P.O. Box 1300, Santa Cruz, CA 95061 

                (831) 454-4036      FAX: (831) 763-8906  

The County of Santa Cruz complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act. This meeting room is accessible for people with disabilities. If 

you wish to discuss reasonable modifications or accommodations, please call 454-4036 prior to the meeting. For the comfort of those with 

allergies and chemical sensitivities, please do not wear perfume or scented products to the meeting. 

IHSS Advisory Commission 

Meeting Minutes 

Date: Friday, September 23, 2022 
Time:  1:00PM to 3:00PM  
Location:  Remote Meeting 
Present: Lois Sones (Seniors Commission, Vice-Chair), Linda Campbell (Consumer), 

Foster Andersen (Consumer), Jozett Irgang (Consumer), Maria Arreola 
(Provider) 

Excused: Michael Molesky (Consumer, Chair) 
Absent: Patricia Fohrman (Provider) 
Guests: Rebecca Jordan (Guest), Antonio Rivas (Guest), Diana Morales-Figueroa 

(ALTC Office Assistant III) 
Staff: Juan Magaña (IHSS Public Authority) 
 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order 

a. Meeting was called to order at 1:14PM; a quorum was present 

2. Roll Call 

3. Agenda Review 

a. Agenda reviewed; no changes made. 

4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Meeting Minutes 

i. August 26, 2022 Meeting 

b. Correspondence 

i. Commission on Disabilities 

1. June 9, 2022 Meeting 

c. Commission Vacancies 

i. Two (2) – Consumer Representatives 

ii. One (1) – Representative of an organization that advocates for people 
with disabilities or seniors 

d. Motion to approve Consent Agenda called by: 

i. First/Second: Campbell/Irgang 

ii. Ayes: Sones, Taylor, Anderson, Irgang, Campbell 

Page 3



 

 

 

iii. Noes: None 

iv. Abstain: Arreola (not present for vote) 

e. Motion carried unanimously 

5. Oral Communications and Announcements:  

a. Rebecca Jordan (guest) attended meeting as she was invited by Michael 
Molesky as a potential commission member. Rebecca informed the group that 
she has a brother who currently is a recipient of personal care services. 
Rebecca’s brother currently lives out of state, but at some point, will likely need to 
move to CA with her. Rebecca expressed interested in applying to be appointed 
to the IHSS Advisory Commission under the category of at large representative 
of a relative of personal care services.   

b. Taylor reported that she met with Community Life Services and suggested they 
be invited to a future commission meeting. 

c. Sones reported that effective September 30th Elderday will be transitioning from 
temporary alternative services to regular congregate services. To keep everyone 
safe, Elderday is testing their staff twice a week and their participants once a 
week. 

d. Antonio Rivas (guest) shared that Advocacy Inc. is no longer being funded by the 
county. The program helps those senior citizens who have problems within their 
home. Antonio came to the commission meeting to request that the IHSS 
Advisory Commission help advocate for the restoration of their funding. 

i. Sones informed the group that the services provided by Advocacy Inc are 
primarily for adults who are not eligible for In-Home Support Services 

6. Regular Agenda – Action Items 

a. IHSS Advisory Commission Meeting Location (AB 361) 

i. The commission reviewed the requirements under AB 361 – two 
members expressed interest in returning to in-person meetings, but based 
on current county recommendations, they agreed that remote meetings 
can continue until the end of the public health emergency. 

ii. Motion to approve the AB 361 findings and hold the next IHSS Advisory 
Commission meeting remotely was called by: 

1. First/Second: Campbell/Andersen 
2. Ayes:  Sones, Taylor, Andersen, Campbell, Irgang, Arreola,  
3. Noes: None 
4. Abstain: None 

iii. Motion carried unanimously 

7. Regular Agenda – Information Items 

a. Updates/Housekeeping 

i. Reminders from the Chair 

1. Sones reminded the commission of the vacant commission seats 
and reminded everyone to keep looking for consumer 
representatives that can fill the two vacancies. 

ii. Topics & Speakers 

Page 4



 

 

 

1. Taylor suggested that the regional center be invited to speak 
about their home care program. 

2. Staff reported that there are potentially two guest speakers on the 
October agenda: the Volunteer Center and a representative from 
the CAO’s office. 

b. IHSS Provider Trainings 

i. Sones informed the commission that the meeting packet included the 
IHSS Provider Training Flyer from the Health Project Center. 

ii. Staff mentioned that earlier this year, the commission selected six training 
topics for our IHSS care providers. The Health Project Center graciously 
offered four more provider training courses, at no additional cost to the 
county, making it a total of ten courses available to IHSS providers. 

c. Annual Report Review 

i. The commission reviewed the 2022 IHSS Advisory Commission biennial 
report. 

ii. Sones highlighted the goals that the commission has been working on 
and identified others that have not been addressed. 

1. One goal noted on the report was to monitor the ongoing use of the 
Electronic Visit Verification (EVV) – Sones suggested the 
commission receive an update on this as this item has been 
discussed on several occasions and it would be good to receive an 
update on how EVV is going in our county. 

d. Provider Concerns 

i. Sones reminded the commission that this is a standing item for our 
provider representatives to bring up any concerns they may have. 

ii. There were not concerns report. 

e. IHSS Program Updates 

i. Staff provided the following IHSS Program Updates: 

1. The county is re-releasing the Request for Proposal (RFP) for the 
countywide needs assessment for the Master Plan for Aging 

2. The Human Services Department (HSD) will be receiving digital 
divide money from California Department for Aging. HSD plans to 
go to the Board of Supervisors to accept the funds in October and 
to ask to release a RFP to partner with a Community Based 
Organization on this project. The goal is to be able to provide 
technical support in people’s homes. The commission was asked 
to provide suggested potential partners for this project. 

3. We are expanding Adult Protective Services (APS) 
staffing/capacity due to new funds from this past budget year 
budget initiative that allocated more money to APS. 

4. The Public Guardian transition from Health Services Agency is 
complete – Public Guardian is now in Human Services Department 
to help build a stronger elder justice system and align programs 

Page 5



 

 

 

that support vulnerable adults under one division, which is 
consistent with statewide best practices and Master Plan for Aging 
initiatives 

5. We have completed two Public Service Announcements on elder 
abuse/neglect– One on Financial Abuse and the other on Self-
Neglect – please go to santacruzhumanservices.org to see them – 
we hope to air them on local stations. 

f. Public Authority Updates 

i. Staff provided an update on the Back-Up Provider System that was 
reported at last month’s meeting. Public Authority staff have been working 
diligently to implement this system by the October 1st deadline. Our 
clerical support staff completed a mailer to recruit providers who are 
currently active on the registry. The mailer was phase one of the 
recruitment. Phase two will be direct calls to our registry providers – this is 
expected to begin next week. 

g. Subcommittee Reports 

i. Legislative/Advocacy (Sones) 

1. This item was not discussed 

ii. Website (Taylor/Andersen) 

1. Anderson reported that he was able to find the provider enrollment 
link on the website. 

iii. CICA Conference Calls (Campbell) 

1. Campbell provided the following info: 

a. This month’s speaker was Donna Calame, a retired Public 
Authority Director in San Francisco. Donna discussed the 
history of IHSS taken from Hale Zukas. The program 
started in1953 when polio was the big focus, and it was 
funded by the March of Dimes. When it's funding 
diminished, the people came to the state for funding, and 
they got a maximum of $300 a month for a caregiver, 
attendance server as they were called back then. Then in 
1973, they added any fully disabled persons, not only those 
with or who had polio. 

8. Adjournment 

a. Meeting adjourned at 2:25PM 

Next Regular Meeting: October 28, 2022, 1:00PM – 3:00PM 

Page 6



       County of Santa Cruz 
 

        IN-HOME SUPPORTIVE SERVICES PUBLIC AUTHORITY 

                      18 W. Beach Street, Watsonville, CA; P.O. Box 1300, Santa Cruz, CA 95061 

                (831) 454-4036      FAX: (831) 763-8906  

The County of Santa Cruz complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act. This meeting room is accessible for people with disabilities. If 

you wish to discuss reasonable modifications or accommodations, please call 454-4036 prior to the meeting. For the comfort of those with 

allergies and chemical sensitivities, please do not wear perfume or scented products to the meeting. 

IHSS Advisory Commission 

SPECIAL MEETING 

Meeting Minutes 

Date: Wednesday, December 7, 2022 
Time:  1:30PM to 2:00PM  
Location:  Remote Meeting 
Present: Michael Molesky (Consumer, Chair), Lois Sones (Seniors Commission, Vice-

Chair), Becky Taylor (Commission on Disabilities), Foster Andersen 
(Consumer), Linda Campbell (Consumer), Maria Arreola (Provider)Patricia 
Fohrman (Provider) 

Excused: None 
Absent: Jozett Irgang (Consumer) 
Guests: Rebecca Jordan 
Staff: Juan Magaña (IHSS Public Authority) 
 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order 

a. Meeting was called to order at 1:31PM; a quorum was present 

2. Roll Call 

3. Agenda Review 

a. Agenda reviewed; no changes made 

4. Oral Communications and Announcements:  

a. No oral communications or announcements were made. 

5. Regular Agenda – Action Items 

a. IHSS Advisory Commission Meeting Location (AB 361) 

i. The commission reviewed the AB 361 findings and determined the need 
to continue holding meetings remotely. 

ii. Motion to approve the AB 361 findings and hold the next IHSS Advisory 
Commission meeting remotely was called by: 

1. First/Second: Sones/Campbell 
2. Ayes:  Molesky, Sones, Taylor, Andersen, Campbell, Arreola, 

Fohrman 
3. Noes: None 
4. Abstain: None 

iii. Motion carried unanimously 

b. 2023 IHSS Advisory Commission Meeting Schedule 

Page 7



 

 

i. The 2023 IHSS Advisory Commission meeting schedule was included in 
the meeting packet. 

ii. Staff informed that the meeting schedule follows the currently schedule as 
noted on the commission’s by-laws, the fourth Friday of the month, with no 
meeting in July or December. However, the fourth Friday in November 
2023 falls on a county holiday and as a result, the November meeting will 
take place on the third Friday on November 17, 2023. The meeting 
location is noted as “to be announced” due to the ongoing COVID-19 
pandemic. 

iii. Motion to approve the 2023 IHSS Advisory Commission meeting schedule 
called by: 

1. First/Second: Campbell/Sones 
2. Ayes:  Molesky, Sones, Taylor, Andersen, Campbell, Arreola, 

Fohrman 
3. Noes: None 
4. Abstain: None 

iv. Motion carried unanimously 

6. Adjournment 

a. Meeting adjourned at 1:41PM 

Next Regular Meeting: January 27, 2023, 1:00PM – 3:00PM 

Page 8



 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Meeting Minutes  

 
DATE:  Thursday, August 11, 2022 

TIME:   12:30 PM to 2:00 PM 

LOCATION:  Remote Meeting 
PRESENT: Rebecca Haifley (1st District), Stacie Grijalva (2nd District), Becky Taylor (3rd District), Brenda 

Gutierrez Baeza (Vice Chair - 4th District), Michael Leimbach (4th District), David Molina 
(Chair - 5th District) 

EXCUSED: John Daugherty (1st District), Fay Levinson (2nd District), Richard Gubash (3rd District) 
ABSENT: None 
STAFF:  Kaite McGrew (Commissions Manager) 
GUESTS: No members of the public were present. 

1. Call to Order 
Meeting convened at 12:36 PM.  

2. Roll Call 
Commission welcomed new District 1 Commissioner Rebecca Haifley. 

3. Agenda Review 

4. Approve June 9, 2022 Minutes 
Motion to Approve Minutes as written 
Motion/Second:   Molina/Gutierrez Baeza 
Motion passed unanimously.  

5. Public Comment: None 

6. New/Continuing Business:  
6.1. Reduction of DHCS Working Disabled Program Premiums 

Grijalva announced the recent reduction/elimination of premiums for DHCS Disabled Program 
participants.    

6.2. Consider 2022 Legislative Priorities 
Commission considered the following  legislative priorities as recommended by the ad hoc 
Legislative Subcommittee: 

• CA – AB-1663 The Probate Conservatorship Reform and Supported Decision-Making Act 

• CA – SB-1092: Equitable Access to Services 

• CA – AB-2511 Skilled Nursing Facilities: Back-up Electrical Supply ASM Irwin 

• CA – AB-1900: Medi-Cal Income level Maintenance 

• CA – AB-2077: Personal Needs Allowance ASM Calderon 

• Federal – H.R. 431/S. 212: Access Technology Affordability Act 
   

701 Ocean Street, Room 510, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

 P: (831) 454-2772   F: (831) 454-2411   TTY/TDD 711 

commissions@santacruzcounty.us 

www.scccod.net 
 

Santa Cruz County 
Commission on Disabilities 

Page 9

mailto:commissions@santacruzcounty.us


Motion authorizing the Legislative Subcommittee to advocate in support of the 2022 
legislative priorities established by the subcommittee. 
Motion/Second:  Molina/Grijalva 
Motion passed unanimously.  

6.3. County Accessibility Standards for Electronic Documents 
Commission considered opportunities for advocacy related to accessibility screening for County 
electronic documents created using Microsoft Office programs and Adobe Acrobat. 
Motion authorizing Chair to send letter advocating for accessibility screening of County 
electronic documents. 
Motion/Second: Molina/Gutierrez  
Motion passed unanimously. 

6.4. Consider Assembly Bill 361 Statement of Finding 
Motion to approve statement of findings authorizing the Commission to hold their next 
meeting remotely if allowable under the provisions of AB 361 
Motion/Second:   Molina/Grijalva 
Motion passed unanimously.    

7. Commission Reports: 
7.1. History Report:  

7.1.1. Commission History Project:  
Staff reported that the internship posting is ongoing and electronic records are being 
categorized for research purposes. 

8. Ad Hoc Subcommittee Updates: 
8.1. Recreation Subcommittee 

Molina reported that the program is underway and continues to be refined for better 
accessibility. Staff reported that Parks staff have been receptive to suggestions for 
improvements in response to community feedback. Commission agreed to send 
acknowledgement to Parks staff for their efforts to implement this program under difficult 
circumstances including a state-wide instructor shortage and pandemic closures. Commission 
will initiate Kudos planning at the September meeting.      

9. Staff Report 
Staff reported that the EEO/CC Plan is undergoing final approvals before submission to the Board 
potentially in September. The Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Survey presentation is being finalized. 
Commissioners were encouraged to attend the Health Services Agency Townhall on Monkeypox.  

10. Emerging Matters:  
Leimbach announced his resignation from the Commission due to work-related time constraints and 
Commissioners thanked him for his excellent service to the Commission and the disabilities 
community during his term and encouraged him to re-apply in future if/when time allows. Taylor 
expressed appreciation for IHSS Advisory Commission Chair Michael Molesky in his efforts to initiate 
local support groups. Additional information on groups will be provided when it becomes available. 

11. Adjournment 
Meeting adjourned at 1:26 PM. 

Submitted by: Kaite McGrew, Commissions Manager 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Minutes 
DATE:   Tuesday, June 21, 2022 

TIME:   12:30 PM  
LOCATION:  Remote Meeting 
PRESENT: Dena Taylor (1st District), Antonio Rivas (Vice Chair - 2nd District), Mark Johannessen (2nd District), 

Lois Sones (3rd District), Enda Brennan (3rd District), Patricia Fohrman (4th District), Carol Childers 
(Chair - 5th District), Lynn McKibbin (5th District)  

EXCUSED: None  
ABSENT: None 
STAFF: Kaite McGrew (Commissions Manager), Mitsuno Baurmeister (EEO Officer) 
GUESTS: Jamie Sehorn (District 1 Analyst), Steven Matzie (LTC Ombudsman Coordinator), Alicia Morales 

(HSD Social Services Division Director), Corey Azevedo (Senior Network Services) and one member 
of the public was present. 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call/Agenda Review 
Meeting convened at 12:32 PM.  

2. Motion to Approve April 19, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
Motion to approve minutes.  
Motion/Second: McKibbin/Taylor 

 Motion passed unanimously. 

Sones arrived. 

3. Public Comment: None 

4. New Business/Action Items: 
4.1. Live Oak Senior Center Eviction Update 

Sehorn reported that Senior Network Services and Meals on Wheels were given six months to 
move out of their Live Oak facility as of May 2022 so the Live Oak School District could build 
teacher housing at that location. The County volunteered to partner with the school district to 
achieve resolution and Supervisor Koenig met frequently with key stakeholders. Senior Network 
Services will present a proposal to take over liability for building repairs at the next Live Oak 
School District meeting on June 29, 2022. Commissioners are encouraged to attend.  

Brennan arrived. 

4.2. Long Term Care Ombudsman Program 
Matzie provided an overview of the role of the Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program (Advocacy, 
Inc.) which received no CORE funding this year, substantially limiting their ability to serve some 
of the County’s most vulnerable residents. The program is extremely effective with a resolution 
rate of about 65%. Commission discussed potential opportunities for advocacy and support.  

  

701 Ocean Street, Room 510, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 P: (831) 454-2772   F: (831) 454-2411   TTY/TDD 711 

commissions@santacruzcounty.us 
www.sccseniors.org 

 

Santa Cruz County Seniors Commission  

Page 11

mailto:commissions@santacruzcounty.us


4.3. County Social Services Overview 
Morales provided an overview of changes to the County’s Human Services Department - Adult 
and Long-Term Care (ALTC) Division providing a continuum of safety net services for older adults 
and persons with disabilities including the IHSS program, Adult Protective Services (APS), TLC 
(Transforming Lives Through Care) case management program, Veterans Services office, and 
recently, the Public Guardian Team.  

A Governance Board was established to implement the Master Plan for Aging in the areas of 
housing, healthcare, inclusion/equity, non-isolation, work, protection, caregiving, and income 
security. A County-wide needs assessment will be conducted to determine gaps and priorities.  

The State is developing a guaranteed income pilot program and additional funding has been 
allocated for expansion of several programs (APS, full-scope Medi-Cal for seniors 50+ regardless 
of immigration status, and Cal-Fresh for seniors 55+ regardless of immigration status), as well as 
a reduction in share-of-cost for seniors and people with disabilities and a permanent backup 
provider system for the IHSS program.  

Emerging issues: the two most critical issues are the increase in homelessness for seniors and 
the caregiving workforce shortage. Commission discussed potentially participating on the Master 
Plan for Aging Governance Board subcommittees as appropriate and invited Morales to return 
with any opportunities to support the ALTC Division’s efforts.  

Childers and Brennan left meeting 

4.4. Consider Advocacy Opportunities Related to Recruiting and Retaining IHSS Caregivers 
Commission discussed opportunities to support IHSS Caregiver recruitment and retention.  
Morales recommended that the Commission pend their advocacy until clear opportunities to 
address these complex issues become available at the State and Federal level.   

4.5. Assembly Bill 361 Statement of Findings 
Commission considered whether to authorize meeting remotely under the provisions of AB 361 at 
the next meeting.  
Motion to approve statement of findings authorizing the Commission to hold their next meeting 
remotely under the provisions of AB 361. 
Motion/Second: Sones/Taylor 
Motion passed unanimously. 

5. District Reports:  
5.1. District 1:  

Taylor attended a variety of meetings related to issues impacting seniors, including the most 
recent RTC meeting, three California Department on Aging meetings, and the AAA Advisory 
Commission meeting.      

5.2. District 2:  
Johannessen reported that several programs essential to seniors are not receiving CORE funding 
this year (suicide prevention, Meals on Wheels, and Advocacy Inc.). Commissioners are 
encouraged to attend budgeting meetings to advocate on behalf of these programs.   

Sones left the meeting  

6. Adjournment:  
Meeting adjourned at 1:55 PM for lack of quorum. 

Respectfully submitted by: Kaite McGrew, Commissions Manager 

Page 12



County of Santa Cruz 
 

IN-HOME SUPPORTIVE SERVICES ADVISORY COMMISSION 

18 W. Beach Street, Watsonville, CA 95076 

P.O. Box 1300, Santa Cruz, CA  95061 

(831) 454-4036      FAX: (831) 763-8906 

MICHAEL MOLESKY, CHAIR 

 
 
 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY IHSS ADVISORY COMMISSION’S  
FINDINGS PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 AUTHORIZING TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS AS A 

RESULT OF THE CONTINUING COVID-19 PANDEMIC STATE OF EMERGENCY AND HEALTH OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION FOR SOCIAL DISTANCING 

 
WHEREAS, this IHSS Advisory Commission is a legislative body under the Brown Act as defined 

under Cal. Gov. Code section 54952(b) and Santa Cruz County Code Section 2.38.110; and  
 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 361 (“AB 361”), 
urgency legislation effective immediately, that amended Government Code section 54953 to permit 
legislative bodies subject to the Brown Act to continue to meet under modified teleconferencing rules 
provided that they comply with specific requirements set forth in the statute; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to AB 361 and Cal. Gov. Code section 54953(e)(1)(A), a legislative body 

may meet under the modified teleconferencing rules during a proclaimed state of emergency, and 
where local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; and 

 
 WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of Emergency 
in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, and which remains in effect; and 
  

WHEREAS, on September 30, 2021, Santa Cruz County Public Health Officer Dr. Gail Newel 
strongly recommended that legislative bodies in Santa Cruz County continue to engage in 
physical/social distancing by meeting via teleconference as allowed by AB 361 and confirmed that she 
will regularly review and reconsider this recommendation and notify the public when it is no longer 
recommended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to AB 361 and Cal. Gov. Code section 54953(e)(3), within 30 days of the 
date the legislative body first holding a teleconferenced meeting under the modified rules, and every 
30 days thereafter, a legislative body can continue to hold such teleconference meetings provided it 
has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency and determined either that the state 
of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person or that 
local officials continue to recommend measures to promote social distancing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 22, 2021, the IHSS Advisory Commission held its initial teleconference 
meeting under AB 361; and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 27, 2023, the IHSS Advisory Commission held a subsequent 

teleconference meeting under AB 361; and 

Page 13



 

 

 

WHEREAS, the IHSS Advisory Commission has reconsidered the circumstances of the current 
state of emergency and finds that the COVID-19 pandemic continues to directly impact the ability of 
members of the public to participate safely in person and further finds that the Santa Cruz County 
Public Health Officer continues to recommend measures to promote social distancing; and 

 
WHEREAS, in the interest of public health and safety, and due to the emergency caused by the 

spread of COVID-19, the IHSS Advisory Commission deems it necessary to utilize the modified 
teleconferencing rules set forth in AB 361;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the IHSS Advisory Commission makes the following findings by a majority 
vote:  

 
Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and adopted as findings of the IHSS 

Advisory Commission.  
 
 Section 2. Effective immediately, and for the next 30 days, the IHSS Advisory Commission will 
meet via teleconference as authorized under AB 361 and Government Code section 54953(e)(3). 

 
Section 3.  No later than thirty (30) days from making today’s findings, or at the next scheduled 

meeting, the Commission will reconsider the circumstances of the COVID-19 state of emergency and, 
if necessary, adopt subsequent findings to continue holding teleconference meetings in accordance 
with Government Code section 54953(e)(3).  
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the IHSS Advisory Commission in Santa Cruz, State of California, 
this 27th day of January, 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:   

 ________________________________ 
 Chair, IHSS Advisory Commission 
 
ATTEST: _________________________ 
     Department Staff 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
_____________________________________ 
  Office of the County Counsel 
 

 

Page 14



Name Affiliation Jan Feb Mar Apr Apr* May Jun Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec*
Lois Sones Seniors Commission X X X X X X C X X C C X
Becky Taylor Commission on Disabilities X X X X X X C E X C X X
Vacant Rep of Advocate Agency n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Foster Andersen Consumer X X E E E X C X X C C X
Michael Molesky Consumer E X X X X X C X E C C X
Linda Campbell Consumer X X X X X X C X X C C X
Jozett Irgang Consumer X X X A E X C X X C C A
Vacant Consumer n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Vacant Consumer n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Maria Arreola Provider X X X E E X C X X C C X
Patricia Fohrman Provider X X X X X X C X A C C X
*Special Meetings
Key: X = Present

E = Excused
A = Absent
R = Resigned
n/a = Not yet appointed
C = meeting cancelled

IHSS Advisory Commission
2022 Attendance Roster

Page 15


	IHSS Advisory Comm Agenda January 27 2023
	Meeting Packet - Jan 27 2023
	IHSS Advisory Comm Minutes September 23, 2022
	IHSS Advisory Comm Minutes December 7, 2022
	4.b.i.1 - Commission On Disabilities August 11 2022 Minutes
	4.b.ii.1 - Seniors Commission June 21 2022 Meeting Minutes
	6a - IHSS Advisory Commission - AB 361 Findings
	6b - 2022 Attendance - IHSS Advisory Commission




